

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL IT Services for Infrastructure Maintenance

ISSUE DATE: MARCH 17, 2025

PROPOSAL DUE DATE: APRIL 14, 2025

2PM CENTRAL DAYLIGHT TIME (CDT)

TRAILBLAZER TRANSIT



Table of Contents

1		Request for Proposal	4
2		Background – Agency/Client Information	4
	2.1		
	2.2	2 Project Goals/Needs	4
3		Agency Rights	5
4	1	Proposal & Project Dates	5
	4.1	1 Proposal Submission	6
	4.2	2 Signature	6
	4.3	3 Questions Related to the RFP	6
	4.4	4 Response to Questions	7
	4.5	5 Addendum	7
	4.6	6 Interviews	7
	4.7	7 Notice of Award	7
	4.8	8 Terms of the Contract	7
	4.9	9 Contract End Date	7
5	1	Proposal Requirements	8
	5.1	1 Proposal Details	9
	5.2	2 Items Required Prior To Award of Contract	10
	5.3	3 Items Required to be Submitted After Award of Contract	10
6	١	Evaluation of Proposal	10
7	(Other Requirements	11
8	1	Protests	11
	8.1	Prior to the Proposal Date	11
	8.2	2 After Proposal Is Received, During Selection Process	11
	8.3	3 After Award	12
	8.4	4 Appeals	12
9	ı	Data Practices Act / Trade Secret Information	13
1	0	Example Contract	13
1	1	Subcontracting	14
		Attachment A — Scope of Work	15
		Attachment B — Current Technical Environment	19
		Attachment C — Data Report Template	20



Attachment D — Contract/Purchase Order Terms & Conditions	21
Attachment E — Responder Declarations	23
Attachment F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility & Voluntary	
Attachment G — Conflict of Interest Checklist and Disclosure Form	
Attachment H — Cost Estimate Template	29
Attachment I — Affidavit of Noncollusion	30
Attachment J — Certification Regarding Lobbying	31
Attachment K — Federal Contract Clauses	33
Attachment L — Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Special Provisions	49

Trailblazer Transit

Request for Proposal – IT Services

Instructions for Proposers

1 Request for Proposal

Trailblazer Transit referred to further in this RFP as TRAILBLAZER is seeking agency-wide supportive services from a consultant, referred to further in this RFP as CONSULTANT, to manage and maintain its IT infrastructure with a priority focus on maintaining TRAILBLAZER's server, virtual machines, routers, and switches.

Attachment A outlines the project's scope of work and associated requirements and deliverables.

Attachment B outlines the current technical environment.

This RFP and identified attachments shall be used to prepare the proposal and cost estimate. Failure to follow these instructions and requirements may result in rejection of the proposal. TRAILBLAZER is not responsible for any costs incurred by the CONSULTANT in the preparation and submittal of the proposal.

2 Background – Agency/Client Information

TRAILBLAZER is a public transit system that provides transportation to people of all ages for just about any reason. Professional drivers employed by Trailblazer Joint Powers Board utilize elevator-equipped buses to provide Dial-A-Ride service throughout Sibley, McLeod, and Wright Counties plus some limited service into other neighboring cities. Refer to TRAILBLAZER's website for more information.

2.1 Environment Overview

The information below outlines the general demographics of TRAILBLAZER and its current technical environment.

Office Locations: 207 West 11th Street, Glencoe, MN 55336

115 Commerce Circle, Buffalo, MN 55313

Number of Employees: up to 99 total staff (including drivers), including 16 office staff

Current Technical Environment: outlined in Attachment B.

2.2 Project Goals/Needs

The primary goals for this project include:

- 1. Maintaining TRAILBLAZER's server and virtual machines, located in the Glencoe office.
- 2. Updating and maintaining a back-up system for the server and virtual machines, including off-site back-ups.
- 3. Maintaining and replacing other TRAILBLAZER hardware as needed, including desktop computers.
- 4. Obtaining on-call IT support related to IT infrastructure maintenance and management.
- 5. Managing user provisioning and file system permissions.
- 6. Other miscellaneous tasks related to routine network operations.

To this end, TRAILBLAZER is seeking a professional services consultant:



- 1. with expertise in maintaining servers, virtual machines, routers, and switches.
- 2. with the knowledge and experience to maintain an IT system of similar size and complexity to TRAILBLAZER.
- 3. who is collaborative and provides open and ongoing communication to TRAILBLAZER leadership.
- 4. who can provide quick resolution to any IT-related outages or problems.
- 5. who can provide reliable and consistent onsite technical staff, minimizing CONSULTANT staff turnover.

As outlined below in **section 5**, proposals shall illustrate how the CONSULTANT's approach aligns with each of these project goals and how the CONSULTANT team has successfully delivered results to similar clients.

3 Agency Rights

TRAILBLAZER reserves the right to cancel this RFP or delay the date and time for submitting proposals at any time prior to the proposal due date. TRAILBLAZER specifically reserves the right 1) to reject any or all proposals, without limitation, due to nonconforming, nonresponsive proposals or due to results from a background check, 2) to reject any provisions identified in a proposal, 3) to waive any informalities or non-material deviations in a proposal, or 4) to obtain new proposals.

By submitting a proposal, the CONSULTANT agrees to provide additional information upon request. If the CONSULTANT refuses to provide the information upon request, the CONSULTANT may be disqualified from further consideration. The responsibility and outcome evaluation of the proposal will be based on the criteria listed below (a - g). The submitted proposal shall address the criteria listed below, (a - g).

- (a) Financial resources adequate to perform the contract.
- (b) Ability to meet the services requested.
- (c) A satisfactory performance record for providing IT services to other public/government agencies. This will be determined by reference checks for work performed for agencies with similar technical environments.
- (d) The necessary organization, IT experience, and understanding of asset management operational and technical skills, to provide the services requested.
- (e) Compliance with applicable local, state, and federal licensing and tax laws and regulations.
- (g) Compliance with Affirmative Action.

4 Proposal & Project Dates

Proposals are due by April 14, 2025, at 2:00 PM Central Daylight Time (CDT). TRAILBLAZER anticipates the following schedule (Table A) for selecting a consultant and awarding a contract. It is the intent of TRAILBLAZER to have the notice to proceed for the new consultant no later than May 29, 2025.



Table A

Milestone	Date
RFP Released	March 17, 2025
Last day to submit questions	March 31, 2025, 2pm CDT
Responses to questions posted	April 7, 2025, 2pm CDT
Proposal due date	April 14, 2025, 2pm CDT
Interviews	Week of April 28, 2025
Best and final offer/contract negotiation	May 5, 2025
Board approval of selected consultant	May 15, 2025
Contract execution and notice to proceed	May 29, 2025
Service start date	May 29, 2025

4.1 Proposal Submission

A CONSULTANT's proposal will only be accepted as files attached to an email to the RFP Administrator. The subject line on the email shall be **[Name of CONSULTANT] – PROPOSAL**. All required documents shall be submitted to the RFP Administrator.

The Administrator for this RFP is:

Gary Ludwig

Phone Number: 320-864-1000

Email: gludwig@trailblazertransit.com

Proposals submitted by mail, courier, or other means will not be accepted.

It is the CONSULTANT's sole responsibility to see that the proposal, cost estimate, and all required documents are received by the specified time. Time received will be based on the time stamp on the email received by the RFP Administrator. Any proposals received after that time will not be reviewed. The CONSULTANT may withdraw their proposal by notifying the RFP Administrator within 3 calendar days after the proposal due date and time.

4.2 Signature

The proposal shall be signed by an officer with authority to sign the proposal. Electronic signatures are acceptable. The CONSULTANT's address and state of incorporation shall be shown below the signature. A proposal from an individual, company, firm, or partnership shall be executed by the individual or by an authorized representative, member, or officer whose capacity shall be stated.

4.3 Questions Related to the RFP

Questions are **due by March 31, 2025, at 2:00 PM CDT**. Questions must be emailed to the RFP Administrator by the due date. Questions may not be submitted via other methods of communication or sent to anyone outside of the RFP Administrator.



The subject line shall be **QUESTION – RFP IT Services**. No questions will be accepted beyond the date and time noted. The RFP Administrator will acknowledge receipt of the question(s) and responses will be provided within an addendum posted on the TRAILBLAZER website.

CONSULTANTS are advised that the exact wording of their questions will be publicly posted in the addendum.

CONSULTANTS may be disqualified if any unsolicited contact related to this RFP is made with an employee or representative of TRAILBLAZER during the RFP solicitation process. If any CONSULTANT contemplating submitting a proposal is in doubt as to the true meaning of any part of this RFP or finds discrepancies in or omissions from the requirements or specifications, the person shall submit a question by the date identified.

4.4 Response to Questions

Responses to questions will be posted on the TRAILBLAZER website on April 7, 2025, at 2:00 PM CDT.

4.5 Addendum

Any corrections or changes to this RFP will be made by written addendum only, duly numbered, dated, issued, and posted on the TRAILBLAZER website.

Any prior oral and other representations or clarifications by employees or representatives of TRAILBLAZER associated to this RFP are not binding or legally effective except as described in this RFP or any written addendums.

Should an addendum be posted on the website, the CONSULTANT's proposal shall illustrate that each addendum has been received and read.

4.6 Interviews

TRAILBLAZER requires on-site interviews with the top three scoring consultants. These interviews will be held in either the Glencoe, MN or the Buffalo, MN office.

4.7 Notice of Award

It is anticipated that the award of the contract will occur on or before May 29, 2025. The contracted CONSULTANT shall not begin work until an official notice to proceed (NTP) letter has been received, which is tentatively scheduled for May 29, 2025. The award of the contract requires approval from the Trailblazer Governing Board.

4.8 Terms of the Contract

The duration of the contract is one year with the option to extend annually for a total contract duration of up to five years. The year starts on the NTP date. The charges for service may be increased by up to 3.0 percent each year subject to the approval of TRAILBLAZER. TRAILBLAZER will notify the CONTRACTOR 30 days prior to the end of each term if it wishes to exercise the option year.

4.9 Contract End Date

The contract end date will be one (1) year after NTP. An option to extend may be approved annually for a maximum contract term of five (5) years. The option to extend annually is at the discretion of

Trailblazer Transit

Request for Proposal – IT Services

TRAILBLAZER's executive director, based on work performed. TRAILBLAZER will notify the CONTRACTOR 30 days prior to the end of each term if it wishes to exercise the option year.

5 Proposal Requirements

CONSULTANTS should submit a minimum of 5 and a maximum of 7 file attachments to TRAILBLAZER for consideration, depending on the total of the cost estimate (see Required Forms for more detail):

1. Proposal — submit as a single combined PDF

Proposal Format:

- 1. Cover Letter
- 2. Company Overview
- 3. Project Approach
- 4. Risk Analysis and Mitigation
- 5. Past Performance
- 6. References

The required content for each of these sections is detailed in 5.1 Proposal Details. The proposal narrative and any associated documents within the narrative may NOT discuss cost. The costs should only be identified in the cost estimate spreadsheet (see below for details).

2. Required Forms — submit as separate PDFs for each form

Completed and signed required forms including:

- Attachment E: Responder Declarations
- 2. Attachment F: Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension & Other Responsibility Matters
- 3. Attachment G: Conflict of Interest Checklist & Disclosure Form
- 4. Attachment I: Affidavit of Noncollusion
- 5. Attachment J: Certification Regarding Lobbying

3. Cost Estimate — submit as a single Excel document

TRAILBLAZER desires to structure a contract with the selected CONSULTANT based on payment being made for the actual number of hours worked. The contract will be separated into two parts: routine maintenance services and emergency, or discretionary, services. The contract will specify a maximum number of hours that can be worked for each of the two types of services.

TRAILBLAZER completed research with an independent third-party IT professional to estimate that routine maintenance will require approximately 134 hours of labor annually. The estimate for emergency services is 120 hours annually, or 10 hours per month. For more detail, please see TRAILBLAZER'S Anticipated Hours in Attachment A, Section 3.

When preparing the cost estimate, CONSULTANTS may specify a different number of hours of maintenance and emergency services in their proposals than what TRAILBLAZER estimates will be needed. Should a CONSULTANT estimate that more hours are needed, then the CONSULTANT should justify the reason(s) why in the proposal narrative.



CONSULTANTS must identify all estimated costs using the cost estimate template spreadsheet as shown in Attachment H and include the following:

- An itemized estimate of direct labor costs by task, including the job title, labor rate, and estimated hours for each person on the project.
- An estimate for anticipated expenses by category, if any.

This contract will not permit any expenses for mileage, lodging, parking, meals, or airfare associated with the delivery of work.

TRAILBLAZER expects that the contract may include an estimated number of onsite visits of 1 per month. The CONSULTANT may NOT invoice TRAILBLAZER for labor costs incurred while traveling to and from the TRAILBLAZER offices.

5.1 Proposal Details

Section 1: Cover Letter

Include the company name, address, and the name, email address, and phone number of the primary contact. Cover letters must include a statement agreeing to comply with the contract/purchase order terms and conditions if the proposal is accepted. This requirement is also specified in Section 10 of this document.

Section 2: Company Overview

Include an organizational chart, identifying key personnel and their role(s) on the project. Clearly name the primary contact for the project and their qualifications. The overview must identify a project manager/client manager who will be the individual responsible for managing the project's scope, schedule, and budget and the primary liaison to TRAILBLAZER's executive director. TRAILBLAZER's executive director must approve any changes to the PM that occur mid-contract.

The company overview must describe each role on the project, the person(s) assigned to that role, and the responsibilities of each role, including identifying which roles and team members will provide onsite and help desk support.

Include the qualifications and technical skills of each team member on the project.

If the CONSULTANT team includes subconsultants, include subconsultants in the organizational chart, if applicable, and include the company name, key personnel and roles, and a description of the work they will perform. All subconsultant agreements must be reviewed and approved by TRAILBLAZER prior to initiation.

Section 3: Project Approach

Outline your approach to the project, including how your approach aligns with the project's goals and the requirements outlined in **Attachment A**. Detail your firm's response time and approach to IT troubleshooting and resolution.

Section 4: Risk Analysis and Mitigation

List any risks and/or challenges associated with the project and your plan to mitigate them.



Section 5: Past Performance

Describe your work on at least 3 similar projects, including the client, project duration, key personnel, cost, and include a summary of which skills and competencies will apply to this project.

Section 6: References

Provide at least 3 professional references, including company name, contact name, email, and phone number, and a brief description of the IT services provided.

5.2 Items Required Prior To Award of Contract

- Certificates of Insurance, based on requirements identified in Attachment D.
- Bidders List Non-DBE and DBE Quotes Submitted form completed (a copy of this is included for reference in Attachment L) if any subconsultants are used.

5.3 Items Required to be Submitted After Award of Contract

- Copies of Subconsultant Agreements (if applicable)
- Contact List for on-call and after-hours IT support

6 Evaluation of Proposal

As noted in Section 4.6, TRAILBLAZER requires in-person interviews. TRAILBLAZER also reserves the right to negotiate with a CONSULTANT who submits a proposal that meets or exceeds the requirements identified in the RFP, provides a competitive price, and has the qualifications, knowledge, and experience to perform the work based on the proposal evaluation criteria.

The CONSULTANT shall submit any additional information requested by TRAILBLAZER to advance the review and selection. Such information shall be submitted within two working days of receipt of TRAILBLAZER's request. Failure of the CONSULTANT to provide the requested information may result in the CONSULTANT's proposal being rejected and the initiation of dialogue with another consultant.

TRAILBLAZER shall consider all responsive proposals received. TRAILBLAZER intends to award the project to the CONSULTANT who is the most responsive based on the evaluation criteria outlined in Table B

TRAILBLAZER will issue a contract, based on review and recommendation to the Trailblazer Governing Board for approval.

The proposal will be evaluated by a committee, including TRAILBLAZER staff and members of the Trailblazer Governing Board. Along with what is noted in the RFP, proposals will be evaluated based on the criteria noted in **Table B**.

Table B

Evaluation Criteria

1	Project Approach	30%
	Demonstrated understanding of the project's scope of work and risks.	
	• CONSULTANT's approach is aligned with the needs and requirements of the project.	
2	Qualifications & Experience	30%



	•	Experience in performing IT services for similar public agencies.	10%
	•	Skills and competencies of key personnel to perform the work, including technical	10%
		skills and soft skills, such as customer service, responsiveness, and collaboration.	
	•	Demonstrated ability to maintain similar hardware and IT environments.	10%
3		Record of Past Performance and References	20%
	•	Proven record of expert performance on past projects.	10%
	•	Past performance of key personnel on similar projects.	5%
	•	Positive feedback from provided references.	5%
4		Cost	20%
	•	Competitive and reasonable cost estimate.	
	•	Detailed pricing, including labor and expenses associated to the project.	

7 Other Requirements

Taxes: The cost estimate shall be prepared exclusive of applicable taxes.

TRAILBLAZER may request additional information related to the CONSULTANT's cost estimate during the contract negotiations.

8 Protests

The following Bid Protest Procedures apply to this project.

Interested parties must adhere to the following procedures. A protest will be processed in the time frames and structure specified below.

8.1 Prior to the Proposal Date

Protests concerning a procurement by the CONSULTANT or an adversely affected subconsultant must be in writing and received by TRAILBLAZER not less than five (5) working days before proposal due date.

Upon receipt of that protest, the RFP Administrator will determine if the proposal due date should be postponed. If offer proposal due date is postponed, TRAILBLAZER will illustrate on their website that a protest has been filed, and that proposal due date is postponed until TRAILBLAZER has issued its decision. Appropriate addenda will be issued rescheduling the proposal due date.

Any protest to TRAILBLAZER may be withdrawn at any time before TRAILBLAZER has issued its decision.

TRAILBLAZER will respond within three (3) working days of receiving the protest, at least generally, to each issue raised in the Protest. If the matter requires further evaluation, the RFP Administrator will notify the protesting party in writing (by email with return receipt of opening email) of the extended review period. The RFP Administrator's decision on any protest will be in writing and is final.

8.2 After Proposal Is Received, During Selection Process

Protests received after receipt of the proposal on the due date will be considered only if it concerns an issue, procedure, or other matter that could not have been protested by the CONSULTANT prior to



the due date. The protest must be in writing and be received by TRAILBLAZER at least three (3) working days before the award of a contract by TRAILBLAZER.

Upon receipt of the protest, the RFP Administrator will immediately determine if the award of the contract should be postponed. If it is postponed, TRAILBLAZER will notify all vendors who provided a proposal that a protest has been filed and that the award of the contract is postponed until TRAILBLAZER has issued its decision.

A protest to TRAILBLAZER may be withdrawn at any time before TRAILBLAZER has issued its decision.

TRAILBLAZER will respond within three (3) working days of receiving the protest, at least generally, to each material issue raised in the Protest. If the matter requires further evaluation, the RFP Administrator will notify the protesting party in writing (by email) of the extended review period. The RFP Administrator's decision on any protest will be in writing and is final.

8.3 After Award

Protests received after an award has been made will be considered only if the concern, an issue, procedure or other matter could not have been protested by the CONSULTANT after the proposal due date or during the time period of the selection process. The protest must be in writing and received by TRAILBLAZER three (3) working days before the execution of the resulting contract.

Upon receipt of the protest, the RFP Administrator will immediately determine if the execution of the contract should be postponed. If it is postponed, TRAILBLAZER will notify all vendors who submitted a proposal that a protest has been filed, and that execution of the contract is postponed until TRAILBLAZER has issued its decision.

A protest to TRAILBLAZER may be withdrawn at any time before TRAILBLAZER has issued its decision.

TRAILBLAZER will respond within three (3) working days of receiving the protest, at least generally, to each material issue raised in the Protest. If the matter requires further evaluation, the RFP Administrator will notify the protesting party in writing (by email) of the extended review period. The RFP Administrator's decision on any protest will be in writing and is final.

8.4 Appeals

Except as provided above, there are no further administrative appeals available.

In certain circumstances judicial remedies may be available to aggrieved parties.

TRAILBLAZER will consider all written protests made within the timelines stated in this policy. Protest submissions should be concise, logically arranged, clearly state the grounds for the protest, and must include at least the following information:

- Name, address, and telephone number of protester
- Name of the RFP
- A detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds for the protest, including copies of all relevant documents or information
- A statement of relief requested



CONSULTANTS who wish to file a protest regarding the selection or RFP process shall identify their concern in an email. The subject line of the email shall be (CONSULTANT NAME) PROTEST – IT SERVICES. The email shall be sent to:

Gary Ludwig, executive director (gludwig@trailblazertransit.com).

Validation or confirmation of the receipt of the email shall be done by the protestor.

9 Data Practices Act / Trade Secret Information

The Minnesota Government Data Practices Act provides that the name of a CONSULTANT and the dollar amount of the final contract become public once the contract is executed with full signature. With the exception of trade secret information as defined in Minnesota Statutes, section 13.37, all other information submitted by a CONSULTANT becomes public at the time specified and is then available to any person upon request.

Trade secret information is defined in section 13.37 as data, including a formula, pattern, compilation, program, device, method, technique, or process, (1) that was supplied by the CONSULTANT; (2) that is the subject of efforts by the CONSULTANT that are reasonable under the circumstances to maintain its secrecy; and (3) that derives independent economic value, actual or potential, from not being generally known to, and not being readily ascertainable by proper means by, other persons who can obtain economic value from its disclosure or use. Any information in its response to this RFP for which the CONSULTANT claims protection as trade secret information in accordance with the above provisions must be limited and set apart in the proposal on separate pages, with a heading that identifies the information as trade secret information. TRAILBLAZER will make the ultimate determination whether the information meets the applicable definition. Any information submitted in response to this RFP which does not meet the legal definition will be considered public information, regardless of the CONSULTANT's identification of it as trade secret information. Blanket-type identification by designating whole pages or sections as containing trade secret information will not assure protection — the specific information for which the CONSULTANT claims trade secret protection must be clearly identified as such.

Submitted estimated costs for labor and expenses shall not be copyrighted. A statement by the CONSULTANT that submitted information is copyrighted or otherwise protected does not prevent public access to the information.

10 Example Contract

TRAILBLAZER's standard contract terms and conditions are provided in Attachment D.

The terms and conditions outlined in **Attachment D** illustrate various legal and administrative duties and responsibilities assumed by persons or organizations contracting with TRAILBLAZER. CONSULTANTS are strongly advised to review the contracted standard terms and conditions carefully and are responsible for taking the requirements into account when preparing their proposals and estimates.

As part of the proposal, the CONSULTANT's cover letter shall certify that, if the proposal is accepted, the CONSULTANT agrees to comply with these terms and conditions. For the purposes of this document, the terms "contract" and "purchase order" are interchangeable. The cover letter shall



identify any condition or exception to the proposal package including **Attachment D**. TRAILBLAZER will assess if the condition or exception is acceptable or not.

11 Subcontracting

The CONSULTANT may subcontract for functions to fulfill the obligations of their proposal. The CONSULTANT **shall** identify within their proposal the name and role that a subconsultant will provide for the project as well as a description of the work they will perform. All subconsultant agreements must be reviewed and approved by TRAILBLAZER prior to initiation.

Attachment A — Scope of Work

1 Services Requested

TRAILBLAZER is seeking an IT CONSULTANT to provide onsite Information Technology (IT) management services including, but not limited to, maintaining TRAILBLAZER's server, virtual machines, router, and switches, and providing prompt resolution of technology issues arising from the operation and maintenance of the server, virtual machines, routers, and switches, according to the Service Level Agreement (SLA) outlined below. The services include:

1. Server Management

- a. TRAILBLAZER's server is currently running Windows 2022 Server Standard. The CONSULTANT will maintain the server operating system and upgrade as needed in coordination with TRAILBLAZER's executive director.
- b. The CONSULTANT will configure and maintain the Network Attached Storage (NAS).
- c. The server backup is currently managed using the current version of Veeam. The CONSULTANT will maintain the server backup.
- d. The CONSULTANT will maintain an offsite server backup at TRAILBLAZER's Buffalo office. TRAILBLAZER currently has an offsite backup solution at the Buffalo facility that may need to be reconfigured or optimized.
- e. The CONSULTANT will maintain and upgrade all virtual machine operating systems and migrate data and/or applications prior to operating system end of support.
- f. Make ongoing recommendations regarding configuration and necessary updates to the TRAILBLAZER executive director.

2. Switch and Router Maintenance

- a. Recommend and install updated network switches and routers as needed in coordination with TRAILBLAZER's executive director.
- b. Configuration and maintenance of routers and switches.

3. Hardware Maintenance:

- a. Diagnose, investigate, identify root cause, and recommend solutions to any system problems identified by the CONSULTANT or by the TRAILBLAZER team.
- b. Replace hardware as needed.
- c. Provide or schedule repairs and maintenance necessary to continue operations and meet Service Level Agreement expectations. Keep maintenance records for all equipment.

4. Routine Updates to all Hardware

- a. CONSULTANT to run updates on all identified hardware (including desktop computers) two weeks after updates are released on a stable channel or equivalent.
- b. CONSULTANT to provide upgrade plans in advance for all equipment approaching the end of support, including server operating systems.
- c. Coordinate maintenance and upgrades with TRAILBLAZER executive director to minimize impact to TRAILBLAZER operations. CONSULTANT to issue alerts to the TRAILBLAZER executive director prior to all maintenance activities that will impact TRAILBLAZER operations.

5. On-Call Support for Technology Issues or Outages Related to TRAILBLAZER's server, virtual machines, routers, and switches.

a. CONSULTANT may provide and deploy a tool for remote device control for problem resolution subject to the approval of TRAILBLAZER's executive director.

2 Technology Procurement

Should the CONSULTANT recommend that TRAILBLAZER purchase replacement hardware or technology, TRAILBLAZER will purchase this independent of this contract.

TRAILBLAZER will expect the selected CONSULTANT to be agnostic regarding products and seek cost-effective solutions appropriate for TRAILBLAZER's budget and existing technical environment.

When there is an identified need for new equipment, the CONSULTANT may recommend products to TRAILBAZER's executive director. TRAILBLAZER is subject to federal and state procurement guidelines, so TRAILBLAZER may or may not be able to purchase that specific product.

3 Anticipated Hours

TRAILBLAZER anticipates 134 hours of yearly maintenance hours, including 1 hour of monthly maintenance and 32 hours of guarterly maintenance. Refer to **Attachment B** for a detailed breakdown of these hours.

The contract must include an additional bank of 10 hours per month for emergency use, at the discretion of the TRAILBLAZER executive director.

The yearly maintenance hours added to the bank of emergency hours is equivalent to 254 hours annually. The emergency hours may be applied to special projects as directed and approved by TRAILBLAZER's executive director and agreed to by the CONSULTANT.

4 Service Level Agreement and Expected Response Time

TRAILBLAZER's normal working hours are Monday through Friday, 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. central time.

TRAILBLAZER recognizes 6 holidays per year during which TRAILBLAZER offices are closed. Routine and scheduled maintenance will not be scheduled onsite on days when TRAILBLAZER offices are closed, but maintenance services may be provided remotely, with the approval of the TRAILBLAZER executive director.

The CONSULTANT is expected to adhere to the SLA (Service Level Agreement) for expected contact time for issues based on tier of issue:

- Tier 1: Critical issue, 4-hour response time
- Tier 2: Major issue, 24-hour response time
- Tier 3: Minor issue, 48-hour response time
- Tier 4: Quality of life issue, 72-hour response time

Refer to **Table 3** for additional detail and definitions for each tier.

The CONSULTANT will provide telephone, email, and, if applicable, remote desktop troubleshooting and resolution, as needed. The CONSULTANT must provide "on-call technology resolution services" through a telephone help desk or some other mutually agreed upon method between 6 a.m. and 6 p.m. on weekdays, excluding TRAILBLAZER's six (6) recognized holidays. The term on-call technology resolution services is defined as someone who will answer the telephone or otherwise communicate immediately with TRAILBLAZER.

If the CONUSLTANT provides "call-back technology resolution service," this service is expected to be provided between 6 p.m. and 6 a.m. on weekdays and all day on Saturdays, Sundays, and TRAILBLAZER's six (6) recognized holidays. The term call-back technology resolution services is defined as Trailblazer sending a message via voicemail or some other mutually agreed upon method with the expectation that someone will respond to TRAILBLAZER within four (4) hours. The CONSULTANT must outline what types of support can be offered by their teams for each tier identified below as part of their proposals.

At the kick-off meetings, CONSULTANT and the TRAILBLAZER executive director will review **Table 3** to classify potential issues, outages, and emergencies by tier. If an unclassified issue arises, it will be treated as a Tier 1 issue until the TRAILBLAZER executive director confirms that it can be classified differently, if applicable.

Issue	Tier	Classification	Response Time (maximum)	Resolution Time
Service not	1	Critical Issue	4 hours	ASAP — Best
available (all				Effort
users and				
functions				
unavailable).				
Significant	2	Major Issue	24 hours	ASAP — Best
degradation of				Effort
service (critical				
business				
functions				
affected)				
Limited	3	Minor Issue	48 hours	ASAP — Best
degradation of				Effort
service (limited				
number of users				
or functions				
affected,				
business process				
can continue).				
Small service	4	Quality of Life	72 hours	ASAP — Best
degradation		Issue		Effort
(business process				
can continue, one				
user affected).				

5 Downtime and Planned Service Outages

The CONSULTANT shall perform IT repairs and maintenance requiring system-wide downtime between 8:00 pm and 6:00 am central time daily, including weekends, unless alternate times are approved in advance by the TRAILBLAZER executive director.

The "Emergency Support" hours may be used for additional technology projects outside the scope of this project, with the agreement of both the CONSULTANT and the TRAILBLAZER executive director.

6 Project Kick Off

After the selected CONSULTANT receives notice to proceed, the CONSULTANT will coordinate kick-off meetings with the TRAILBLAZER executive director.

The agenda will be include an introduction to TRAILBLAZER's staff, visit to both offices, confirmation of TRAILBLAZER's goals and expectations for the work, creation of a contact list for both TRAILBLAZER and the CONSULTANT, including emergency contacts and after-hours call numbers, and any expectations for onsite technicians and protocols for interacting with TRAILBLAZER staff.

7 Liability

The CONSULTANT agrees to make any changes that TRAILBLAZER requests with the understanding that TRAILBLAZER accepts and owns any risk involved.

8 Invoicing/Payment

Invoices shall be emailed to:

Gary Ludwig, executive director (gludwig@trailblazertransit.com).

The email subject line shall be [CONSULTANT Name] – IT Services – [Invoice #]

The CONSULTANT will share their invoice template at the kickoff meeting for approval by TRAILBLAZER's executive director.

9 Reporting

The CONSULTANT shall provide a monthly report. This report shall be submitted with the invoice. The report shall include all the data in the Monthly Report Template in **Attachment C**.

Attachment B — Current Technical Environment

Environment Summary

The following technical environment is provided for the CONSULTANT to understand TRAILBLAZER's technical environment, however, only the IT infrastructure identified as part of the Scope of Work in **Attachment A** is in the scope of this project. The CONSULTANT is not responsible for administering software, printers, or other technology not identified in the Scope of Work.

Total Hardware Types	12
Total Software Types	8
Total OS Types	2
Expected Monthly Maintenance Time in hours	1
Expected Quarterly Maintenance Time in Hours	32
Expected Yearly Maintenance Time in Hours	134

Software Summary

Software Name	OS Installed On	Manufacturer	Version	Maintenance Period	Monthly Maintenance Time (Hours)	Refresh Period	Notes
Office	Windows	Microsoft	2016		0	N/A	
TripSpark Novus DR	Cloud	TripSpark				N/A	
M 365 Email	Cloud				0	N/A	
Zoom	Cloud				0	N/A	
Veeam				Quarterly	2	N/A	Backup
Defender					0	N/A	
Hikvision	Windows			Quarterly	2	N/A	Cameras
Hyper-V				Quarterly	3	N/A	Hypervisor

Hardware Summary

Number	System	Quantity	Location	Manufacturer	Version	EOL	Updated Version	Maintenance Period	Maintenance Time	Refresh Period (hours)	Notes
1	Servers	1	Buffalo	Dell	R760 Xeon Gold	None	Windows Server 2022	Quarterly	2	7	'
2	Computers	44	Both					Quarterly	2	5	38 desktop computers (20 Buffalo; 18 Glencoe and 6 laptops
3	Routers	2	Both	Cisco	4451	11/30/28	Catalyst C8300	Quarterly	2	7	,
4	Switch	4	Both	HPE	Office Connect 1950	EOS	OfficeConnect 1960	Quarterly	4	7	
5	Firewall	2	Both	WatchGuard	Firebox M290	None	None	Quarterly	2	7	,
6	Monitors		Both							7	Metro Sales 'Owner
7	Printers	4	Both	Ricoh				Yearly	1	7	,
8	NAS	1		Synology	Rs815+	EOS	Rs822+	Quarterly	2	7	
9	WAP			UniFi				Yearly	4	7	,
10	UPS		Both	Smart-Ups	2200			Yearly	1	7	
12	Switch	2		Netgear	ProSafe 24p GS724T	9/1/23	ProSafe 24P GS724T V4	Quarterly	2	7	,

Operating System Summary

Number OS	Hardware Type	Quantity	Version	Maintenance Period	Monthly Maintenance Time (hours)	Notes
1 Windows	Computers		10	Monthly	1	
2 Windows Server	Servers	4	2022	Quarterly	4	1 physical server and 3 virtual machines

Attachment C — Data Report Template

CONSULTANT will provide monthly data reports showing work completed.

Work Summary

Task	Location	Technology Type	Technology Name	Date Completed	Notes
Brief description of work performed	Specify Buffalo, Glencoe, or both	Server, virtual machine, router, switch, computer, monitor, or other (please identify)	specific hardware or software was updated as part of this		

Attachment D — Contract/Purchase Order Terms & Conditions

If a written Agreement exists between TRAILBLAZER and the CONSULTANT which would govern the purchase of the goods and services under this purchase order, such existing written Agreement shall prevail.

These standard Terms and Conditions, including other documents listed herein, along with all written modifications thereto shall collectively constitute the "Purchase Order" (PO). This PO shall constitute a Contract between TRAILBLAZER and the CONSULTANT.

Billings and Payment: CONSULTANT shall submit an itemized invoice to TRAILBLAZER, who shall review and approve or disapprove payment within ten days. Undisputed invoices will be paid within thirty-five days.

Inspection and Acceptance of Goods: TRAILBLAZER retains the right to examine and inspect all goods for conformance with specifications and to notify CONSULTANT of rejection within a reasonable time.

Unallowable expenses: TRAILBLAZER does not permit any expenses for mileage, lodging, parking, meals, or airfare associated with the delivery of work. The CONSULTANT may not invoice TRAILBLAZER for labor costs incurred while traveling to and from the TRAILBLAZER offices.

Prompt Payment to Subconsultants: CONSULTANT shall pay any subconsultant providing goods or services under this contract within ten days of the CONSULTANT's receipt of payment from TRAILBLAZER for undisputed services provided by the subconsultant. Failure to timely pay the subconsultant will subject CONSULTANT to pay interest of 1-1/2 percent per month or any part of a month to the subconsultant on any undisputed amount not paid on time to the subconsultant.

Records and Data: CONSULTANT shall maintain the books, records, documents and accounting procedures related to this contract for a period of six years after the furnishing of goods, supplies or services hereunder, and upon written request shall make such records available for inspection or audit by TRAILBLAZER, the State Auditor, or other duly authorized representative of either. CONSULTANT is subject to the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Minn. Stat. Chapter 13.

Compliance with Laws: CONSULTANT must comply with all laws, rules and regulations enacted by the federal, state, or local government which relate to the CONSULTANT's performance of the provisions of this contract. CONSULTANT is responsible for obtaining and paying for any licenses, permits or approvals needed.

Insurance and Indemnification: CONSULTANT will defend and indemnify TRAILBLAZER, its officers, agents, and employees from all claims or causes of action or suits of any character for alleged injuries or damages received by any person or property resulting from the negligence of CONSULTANT, its agents or employees while carrying out the provisions of this contract.

When the CONSULTANT is on TRAILBLAZER properties to perform any portion of this contract, CONSULTANT shall obtain and keep in full force and effect while performing the work insurance policies in the type and amounts set forth:

- 1) General or business liability: \$1,500,000.00 per occurrence and \$2,000,000.00 aggregate per project and \$2,000,000.00 products/completed operations total limit, and \$1,500,000.00 personal injury and advertising.
- **2)** Auto Insurance if commercial vehicles are used: \$750,000.00 per person and \$1,000,000.00 per accident for bodily injury and a minimum of \$50,000.00 per accident for property damage.
- **3)** Auto Insurance if personal vehicles are used: \$30,000.00 per person and \$60,000.00 per accident for bodily injury and a minimum of \$20,000.00 per accident for property damage.
- **4)** Workers Compensation and Employer's Liability: Workers Compensation per Minnesota Statutes. Employer's Liability minimum limits of \$500,000.00 per accident; \$500,000.00 per employee; \$500,000.00 per disease policy

limit. CONSULTANTS with 10 or fewer employees who do not have Worker's Compensation coverage are required to provide the city with a copy of Minnesota MN LIC 04 Certificate of Compliance.

Termination: TRAILBLAZER reserves the right to terminate this contract if the CONSULTANT fails to comply with any of its terms or does not fulfill its obligations hereunder in a timely and effective manner, or if TRAILBLAZER fails to appropriate sufficient funds to continue performance on the contract / project.

Interpretation of Agreement and Venue: This contract is subject to the laws of the State of Minnesota. Any litigation related to this Agreement will be located in Glencoe, Minnesota, 1st Judicial District, State of Minnesota.

Non-Discrimination: CONSULTANT will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment for work performed under this Agreement because of race, creed, religion, color, sex, sexual or affectional orientation, national origin, ancestry, familial status, age, disability, marital status, or status with regard to public assistance, and will take affirmative steps to ensure that all applicants are hired and all employees are treated during employment without such discrimination.

Prevailing Wage: If this contract involves labor for construction, remodeling, demolition, repair or renovation of a public building, roads or other public work, CONSULTANT must pay prevailing wages pursuant to State Statutes. **(Not Applicable).**

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352): For all contracts or sub grants of \$100,000 or more, the CONSULTANT shall provide to TRAILBLAZER a certification that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352.

Debarment and Suspension (E.O.s 12549 and 12689): For all contracts in excess of the small purchase threshold fixed at 41 U.S.C. 403(11), TRAILBLAZER shall obtain from the CONSULTANT **Attachment F** completed – illustrating that neither the CONSULTANT nor any of its principal employees are listed on the General Services Administration's *List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Nonprocurement Programs*.

Attachment E — Responder Declarations

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

- **A. Response Contents.** The information provided is true, correct, and reliable for purposes of evaluation for potential contract award. The submission of inaccurate or misleading information may be grounds for disqualification from the award as well as subject the Responder to suspension or debarment proceedings as well as other remedies available by law.
- **B.** Authorized Signature. This Declaration is signed by the appropriate person(s), with the authority to contractually bind the Responder, as required by applicable articles, bylaws, resolutions, minutes, and ordinances.

C. Non-Collusion Certification.

- 1. The Proposal has been arrived at by the Responder independently and has been submitted without collusion and without any agreement, understanding or planned common course of action with any other vendor designed to limit fair or open competition; and
- 2. The contents of the Response have not been communicated by the Responder or its employees or agents to any person not an employee or agent of the Responder and will not be communicated to any other individual prior to the due date and time of this Solicitation. Any evidence of collusion among Responders in any form designed to defeat competitive responses will be reported to the Minnesota Attorney General for investigation and appropriate action.
- **D.Copyrighted Material Waiver.** By signing its Response, the Responder certifies that it has obtained all necessary approvals for the reproduction and distribution of the contents of its response.
- **E.** Diverse Spend Reporting. The Sample Contract contains a clause for Diverse Spend Reporting. When this clause applies, the CONSULTANT will be required to register in a free portal to report diverse spend. Please see <u>Diverse Spend</u>

 Reporting Frequently Asked <u>Questions</u> for additional information.
- **F. Certification Regarding Lobbying.** For State of Minnesota Contracts and Grants over \$100,000, the undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:
 - 1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
 - 2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned must complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying in accordance with its instructions.
 - 3. The undersigned must require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients must certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into and is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Any person who fails to file the required certification will be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

By signing this form, Responder acknowledges and certifies compliance with all applicable requirements indicated above.

Authorized Signature

Responder's firm name:
Printed name:
Title:
Email:
Telephone:
Authorized signature:
Date (mm/dd/yyyy):

Attachment F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility & Voluntary Exclusion

The Contractor shall comply and facilitate compliance with U.S. DOT regulations, "Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment," 2 C.F.R. part 1200, which adopts and supplements the Office of Management and Budget (U.S. OMB) "Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement)," 2 C.F.R. part 180.

These provisions apply to each contract at any tier of \$25,000 or more, and to each contract at any tier for a federally required audit (irrespective of the contract amount), and to each contract at any tier that must be approved by an FTA official irrespective of the contract amount. As such, the Contractor shall verify that its principals, affiliates, and subcontractors are eligible to participate in this federally funded contract and are not presently declared by any Federal department or agency to be:

- a) Debarred from participation in any federally assisted Award;
- b) Suspended from participation in any federally assisted Award;
- c) Proposed for debarment from participation in any federally assisted Award;
- d) Declared ineligible to participate in any federally assisted Award;
- e) Voluntarily excluded from participation in any federally assisted Award; or
- f) Disqualified from participation in ay federally assisted Award.

By signing and submitting its bid or proposal, the bidder or proposer certifies as follows:

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact relied upon by the [Transit System Legal Name]. If it is later determined by the [Transit System Legal Name] that the bidder or proposer knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to remedies available to the [Transit System Legal Name], the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. part 180, subpart C, as supplemented by 2 C.F.R. part 1200, while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions.

Signature and Title of Authorized Official
Date

Attachment G — Conflict of Interest Checklist and Disclosure Form

<u>Purpose of this Checklist</u>. This checklist is provided to assist proposers in screening for potential organizational conflicts of interest. The checklist is for the internal use of proposers and does not need to be submitted to TRAILBLAZER, however, the Disclosure of Potential Conflict of Interest form should be submitted in a separate envelope along with your proposal.

<u>Definition of "Proposer".</u> As used herein, the word "Proposer" includes both the prime Contractor and all proposed Subcontractors.

<u>Checklist is not Exclusive.</u> Please note that this checklist serves as a guide only, and that there may be additional potential conflict situations not covered by this checklist. If a proposer determines a potential conflict of interest exists that is not covered by this checklist, that potential conflict must still be disclosed.

<u>Use of the Disclosure Form.</u> Proposer must complete the attached disclosure form and submit it with their Proposal (or separately as directed by TRAILBLAZER for projects not awarded through a competitive solicitation). If the proposer determines a potential conflict of interest exists, it must disclose the potential conflict to TRAILBLAZER; however, such a disclosure will not necessarily disqualify a proposer from being awarded a Contract. To avoid any unfair "taint" of the selection process, the disclosure form should be provided separate from the bound proposal, and it will not be provided to selection committee members. TRAILBLAZER personnel will review the disclosure and the appropriateness of the proposed mitigation measures to determine if the proposer may be awarded the Contract notwithstanding the potential conflict. TRAILBLAZER personnel may consult with TRAILBLAZER's Project Manager. By statute, resolution of conflict of interest issues is ultimately at the sole discretion of the TRAILBLAZER.

<u>Material Representation</u>. Proposer is required to submit the attached disclosure form either declaring, to the best of its knowledge and belief, either that no potential conflict exists, or identifying potential conflicts and proposing remedial measures to ameliorate such conflict. The proposer must also update conflict information if such information changes after the submission of the proposal. Information provided on the form will constitute a material representation as to the award of this Contract. TRAILBLAZER reserves the right to cancel or amend the resulting Contract if the successful proposer failed to disclose a potential conflict, which it knew or should have known about, or if the proposer provided information on the disclosure form that is materially false or misleading.

Approach to Reviewing Potential Conflicts. TRAILBLAZER recognizes that proposers must maintain business relations with other public and private sector entities in order to continue as viable businesses. TRAILBLAZER will take this reality into account as it evaluates the appropriateness of proposed measures to mitigate potential conflicts. It is not TRAILBLAZER's intent to disqualify proposers based merely on the existence of a business relationship with another entity, but rather only when such relationship causes a conflict that potentially impairs the proposer's ability to provide objective advice to TRAILBLAZER. TRAILBLAZER would seek to disqualify proposers only in those cases where a potential conflict cannot be adequately mitigated. Nevertheless, TRAILBLAZER must follow statutory guidance on Organizational Conflicts of Interest.

Statutory Guidance. Minnesota Statutes §16C.02, subdivision 10(a) places limits on TRAILBLAZER's ability to Contract with entities having an "Organizational Conflict of Interest". For purposes of this checklist and disclosure requirement, the term "Vendor" includes "Proposer" as defined above. Pursuant to such statute, "Organizational Conflict of Interest" means that because of existing or planned activities or because of relationships with other persons: (1) the vendor is unable or potentially unable to render impartial assistance or advice to the state; (2) the vendor's objectivity in performing the contract work is or might otherwise be impaired; or (3) the vendor has an unfair advantage.

An organizational conflict of interest may exist in any of the following cases:

- □ The proposer, or its principals, own real property in a location where there may be a positive or adverse impact on the value of such property based on the recommendations, designs, appraisals, or other deliverables required by this Contract.
- The proposer is providing services to another governmental or private entity and the proposer knows or has reason to believe, that entity's interests are, or may be, adverse to the state's interests with respect to the specific project covered by this Contract. **Comment:** the mere existence of a business relationship with another entity would not ordinarily need to be disclosed. Rather, this focuses on the nature of services commissioned by the other entity. For example, it would not be appropriate to propose on a TRAILBLAZER project if a local government has also retained the proposer for the purpose of persuading TRAILBLAZER to stop or alter the project plans.
- □ The Contract is for right-of-way acquisition services or related services (e.g. geotechnical exploration) and the proposer has an existing business relationship with a governmental or private entity that owns property to be acquired pursuant to the Contract.
- The proposer is providing real estate or design services to a private entity, including but not limited to developers, whom the proposer knows or has good reason to believe, own or are planning to purchase property affected by the project covered by this Contract, when the value or potential uses of such property may be affected by the proposer's performance of work pursuant to this Contract. "Property affected by the project" includes property that is in, adjacent to, or in reasonable proximity to current or potential right-of-way for the project. The value or potential uses of the private entity's property may be affected by the proposer's work pursuant to the Contract when such work involves providing recommendations for right-of-way acquisition, access control and the design or location of frontage roads and interchanges. **Comment**: this provision does not presume proposers know nor have a duty to inquire as to all of the business objectives of their clients. Rather, it seeks the disclosure of information regarding cases where the proposer has reason to believe that its performance of work under this contract may materially affect the value or viability of a project it is performing for the other entity.
- The proposer has a business arrangement with a current TRAILBLAZER employee or immediate family member of such employee, including promised future employment of such person, or a subcontracting arrangement with such person, when such arrangement is contingent on the proposer being awarded this Contract. This item does not apply to pre-existing employment of current or former TRAILBLAZER employees, or their immediate family members.

 Comment: this provision is not intended to supersede any TRAILBLAZER policies applicable to its own employees accepting outside employment. This provision is intended to focus on identifying situations where promises of employment have been made contingent on the outcome of this particular procurement. It is intended to avoid a situation where a proposer may have unfair access to "inside" information.
- The proposer has, in previous work for the state, been given access to "data" relevant to this procurement or this project that is classified as "private" or "nonpublic" under the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, and such data potentially provides the proposer with an unfair advantage in preparing a proposal for this project. **Comment**: this provision will not, for example, necessarily disqualify a proposer who performed some preliminary work from obtaining a final design Contract, especially when the results of such previous work are public data available to all other proposers. Rather, it attempts to avoid an "unfair advantage" when such information cannot be provided to other potential proposers. Definitions of "government data", "public data", "non-public data" and "private data" can be found in Minnesota Statutes Chapter 13.
- □ The proposer has, in previous work for the state, helped create the "ground rules" for this solicitation by performing work such as: writing this solicitation, or preparing evaluation criteria or evaluation guides for this solicitation.
- □ The proposer, or any of its principals, because of any current or planned business arrangement, investment interest, or ownership interest in any other business, may be unable to provide objective advice to the state.

DISCLOSURE OF POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Name		Phone
	cial conflict has been identified, please provide name and phone is disclosure form with TRAILBLAZER contract personnel.	number for a contact person authorized to
Signature		Date
Describe r	neasures proposed to mitigate the potential conflict:	
D		
Describe r	nature of potential conflict:	
	Determined a potential organizational conflict of interest as follows:	
that it has	, to the best of its knowledge and belief: Determined that no potential organizational conflict of interest	exists
	d the opportunity to review the Organizational Conflict of Interes	st Checklist, the proposer hereby indicates

Attachment H — Cost Estimate Template

Include a detailed cost estimate inclusive of all hourly rates, anticipated travel, and other incidental costs and charges. The following template must be used to outline the cost for completing all work identified in **Attachment A** (Scope of Work). The cost estimate template is included with the RFP as an Excel template for easy use.

CONSULTANT must provide an estimate of labor hours for both regular maintenance and emergency support. The CONSULTANT may provide a more detailed break-down of hours by task as they see fit.

TRAILBLAZER does not anticipate any expenses for this contract, but the CONSULTANT may outline any expenses here that they believe are necessary.

Expenses are reimbursed on actuals with receipts and must be included with monthly invoices to be reimbursed.

Cost Estimate				
[Company Name/Logo]				
Assume 1-year contract				
Labor	[Role/Rate 1]	[Role/Rate 2]	[Role/Rate 3]	Etc.
Regular Maintenance	[# of hours]	[# of hours]	[# of hours]	
mergency Support	[# of hours]	[# of hours]	[# of hours]	
ate	[labor rate]	[labor rate]	[labor rate]	
otal Hours	[total hours across tasks]	[total hours across tasks]	[total hours across tasks]	
Fotal Cost	[# of hours x labor rate]	[# of hours x labor rate]	[# of hours x labor rate]	
			Total Labor Estimate	
Expenses	Type of Expense	Amount	Quantity	T otal
RAILBLAZER does not anticip	ate the need for any expenses on this con	ntract, but the CONSULTANT may outline	e any expenses that they believe are nec	essary.
				[Amount x Quantity]
			Total Expense Estimate	
			Cost Estimate	[Labor + Expenses]
			Signature of Principal	
			<u>Name</u>	
			Title	
			Date	

Attachment I — Affidavit of Noncollusion

I hereby swear (or affirm) under penalty of perjury:	
That I am the bidder (if the bidder is an individual), a partner of the bidder (if the bidder is a partnership) employee of the bidding corporation, have authority to sign on its behalf (if the bidder is a corporation);), or an officer o
That the attached bid or bids have been arrived at by the bidder independently, and have been submitted with, and without any agreement, understanding or planned common course of action with any other ven supplies, equipment, or services described in the invitation to bid, designed to limit independent bidding	ndor of materials
That the contents of the bid or bids have not been communicated by the bidder or its employees or ager not an employee or agent of the bidder or its surety on any bond furnished with the bid or bids, communicated to any such person prior to the official opening of the bid or bids; and	
That I have fully informed myself regarding the accuracy of the statements made in this affidavit.	
Additionally;	
The hereby certifies it is /is not (circle one)	
Company Name included on the United States Comptroller General's consolidated list of persons or firms currently debard of various public contracts incorporating labor standards provisions.	red for violations
	Signed

Attachment J — Certification Regarding Lobbying

L. LOBBYING RESTRICTIONS 31 U.S.C. § 1352; 2 C.F.R. § 200.450; 2 C.F.R. part 200 appendix II (J); 49 C.F.R. part 20

Applicability to Contracts

The lobbying requirements apply to all contracts and subcontracts of \$100,000 or more at any tier under a Federal grant. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this agreement, the payor must complete and submit the Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

Flow Down

The lobbying requirements mandate the maximum flow down pursuant to Byrd AntiLobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. § 1352(b)(5).

Model Clause/Language

49 C.F.R. part 20, Appendices A and B provide specific language for inclusion in

FTA funded third party contracts as follows:

Lobbying Restrictions

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the

undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

 Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official		
 Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official		
Date		

Attachment K — Federal Contract Clauses

Cargo Preference Requirements 46 U.S.C. 1241 46 CFR Part 381

Applicability to Contracts

Whenever transporting equipment, materials, or commodities by ocean vessel, must use U.S.-flag vessels for at least 51% of cargo.

Flow Down

The Cargo Preference requirements apply to all subcontracts when the subcontract may be involved with the transport of equipment, material, or commodities by ocean vessel.

Model Clause/Language

The contractor agrees:

- a. to use privately owned United States-Flag commercial vessels to ship at least 50 percent of the gross tonnage (computed separately for dry bulk carriers, dry cargo liners, and tankers) involved, whenever shipping any equipment, material, or commodities pursuant to the underlying contract to the extent such vessels are available at fair and reasonable rates for United States-Flag commercial vessels;
- b. to furnish within 20 working days following the date of loading for shipments originating within the United States or within 30 working days following the date of loading for shipments originating outside the United States, a legible copy of a rated, "on-board" commercial ocean bill-of-lading in English for each shipment of cargo described in the preceding paragraph to the Division of National Cargo, Office of Market Development, Maritime Administration, Washington, DC 20590 and to the FTA recipient (through the contractor in the case of a subcontractor's bill-of-lading.); and
- c. to include these requirements in all subcontracts issued pursuant to this contract when the subcontract may involve the transport of equipment, material, or commodities by ocean vessel.

Energy Conservation Requirements 42 U.S.C. § 6201; 49 C.F.R. § 622; 26; Best Practices Manual A-41

Applicability to Contracts

The Energy Conservation requirements are applicable to all contracts.

Flow Down

The Energy Conservation requirements extend to all third-party contractors and their contracts at every tier and subrecipients and their sub agreements at every tier.

Model Clause/Language

No specific clause is recommended in the regulations because the Energy Conservation requirements are so dependent on the state energy conservation plan. The following language has been developed by FTA.

Energy Conservation - The contractor agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (EPCA) (42 U.S.C. § 6201).

The primary goals of EPCA are to increase energy production and supply, reduce energy demand, provide energy efficiency, and give the executive branch additional powers to respond to disruptions in energy supply. Part B of Title III of the EPCA established the Energy Conservation Program, which gives the Department of Energy the "authority to develop, revise, and implement minimum energy conservation standards for appliances and equipment.

Lobbying 31 U.S.C. 1352 2 C.F.R. 200.450 49 CFR Part 20

Applicability to Contracts

If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this agreement, the payor must complete and submit the Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

Flow Down

The lobbying requirements apply to all contracts and subcontracts of \$100,000 or more at any tier under a Federal grant.

Mandatory Clause/Language

Clause and specific language therein are mandated by 49 CFR Part 19, Appendix A.

Modifications have been made to the Clause pursuant to Section 10 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, P.L. 104-65 [to be codified at 2 U.S.C. § 1601, et seq.]

- Lobbying Certification and Disclosure of Lobbying Activities for third party contractors are mandated by 31 U.S.C. 1352(b)(5), as amended by Section 10 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, and DOT implementing regulation, "New Restrictions on Lobbying," at 49 CFR § 20.110(d)
- Language in Lobbying Certification is mandated by 49 CFR Part 19, Appendix A, Section 7, which provides that contractors file the certification required by 49 CFR Part 20, Appendix A.

Modifications have been made to the Lobbying Certification pursuant to Section 10 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995.

• Use of "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," Standard Form-LLL set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR Part 20, as amended by "Government wide Guidance For New Restrictions on Lobbying," 61 Fed. Reg. 1413 (1/19/96) is mandated by 49 CFR Part 20, Appendix A.

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. 1352, as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, P.L. 104-65 [to be codified at 2 U.S.C. § 1601, et seq.] - Contractors who apply or bid for an award of \$100,000 or more shall file the certification required by 49 CFR part 20, "New Restrictions on Lobbying." Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier shall also disclose the name of any registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 who has made lobbying contacts on its behalf with non- Federal funds with respect to that Federal contract, grant or award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient.

APPENDIX A, 49 CFR PART 20--CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements

(To be submitted with each bid or offer exceeding \$100,000)

The undersigned [Contractor] certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

- 1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- 2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for making lobbying contacts to an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form--LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions [as amended by "Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying," 61 Fed. Reg. 1413 (1/19/96). Note: Language in paragraph (2) herein has been modified in accordance with Section 10 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 (P.L. 104-65, to be codified at 2 U.S.C. 1601, et seq .)]
- 3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.
- 4. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31, U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

[Note: Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 1352(c)(1)-(2)(A), any person who makes a prohibited expenditure or fails to file or amend a required certification or disclosure form shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such expenditure or failure.]

\$100,000 for each such exp	enditure or randre.]
The Contractor,	, certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement
Name	
of its certification and disclo	osure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C
A 3801, et seq., apply to thi	s certification and disclosure, if any.
	Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official
	Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official
	Date

Access to Third Party Contract Records
49 U.S.C. s 5325(g);
2 C.F.R. s 200.334 & 200.337;
49 C.F.R. part 633; Best Practices Manual A-3

Applicability to Contracts

Reference Chart "Requirements for Access to Records and Reports by Type of Contracts"

Flow Down

FTA does not require the inclusion of these requirements in subcontracts.

Model Clause/Language

The specified language is not mandated by the statutes or regulations referenced, but the language provided paraphrases the statutory or regulatory language.

- 1. **Record Retention.** The Contractor will retain and will require its subcontractors of all tiers to retain, complete and readily accessible records related in whole or in part to the contract, including, but not limited to, data, documents, reports, statistics, sub-agreements, leases, subcontracts, arrangements, other third-party agreements of any type, and supporting materials related to those records.
- 2. **Retention Period.** The Contractor agrees to comply with the record retention requirements in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.334. The Contractor shall maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this Contract for a period of at not less than three (3) years after the date of termination or expiration of this Contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this Contract, in which case records shall be maintained until the disposition of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto.
- 3. **Access to Records.** The Contractor agrees to provide sufficient access to FTA and its contractors to inspect and audit records and information related to performance of this contract in accordance with 2 CFR 200.337.
- 4. **Access to the Sites of Performance.** The Contractor agrees to permit FTA and its contractor's access to the sites of performance under this contract in accordance with 2 CFR 200.337.

FTA does not require the inclusion of these requirements in subcontracts.

Requirements for Access to Records and Reports by Types of Contract

Contract	Operational	Turnkey	Construction	Architectural	Acquisition	Professional
Characteristics	Service			Engineering	of Rolling	Services
	Contract				Stock	
I State Grantees						
a. Contracts below SAT	None	Those	None	None	None	None
(\$100,000)		imposed on state pass				
(\$100,000)		thru				
b. Contracts	None	to Contractor	Yes, if Non	None unless	None unless	None unless
above	Unless 1		competitive	Non	Non	Non
\$100,000/	Non		award or if	competitive	competitive	competitive
Capital Projects	competitive		funded thru 2	award	award	award
	award		5307/5309/			
			5311			
II <u>Non State</u>						
<u>Grantees</u>						
a. Contracts	Yes ₃	Those	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
below SAT		imposed on				
(\$100,000)		non-state				
		Grantee pass				
b. Contracts	Yes ₃	thru to	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
above		Contractor				
\$100,000/						
Capital Projects						

Sources of Authority

- 1. 49 USC 5325 (a)
- 2. 49 CFR 633.17
- 3. 18 CFR 18.36 (i)

Changes to Federal Requirements 49 CFR Part 18

Applicability to Contracts

The Federal Changes requirement applies to all contracts.

Flow Down

The Federal Changes requirement flows down appropriately to each applicable changed requirement.

Model Clause/Language

Notice to Third Party Participants. The Recipient agrees to include notice in each Third Party Agreement that: (i) Federal requirements that apply to the Recipient or the Award, the accompanying Underlying Agreement, and any Amendments thereto may change due to changes in federal law, regulation, other requirements, or guidance, or changes in the Recipient's Underlying Agreement including any information incorporated by reference and made part of that Underlying Agreement; and (ii) Applicable changes to those federal requirements will apply to each Third Party Agreement and parties thereto at any tier.

No Federal Government Obligations to Third Parties (Use of Disclaimer)

Master Agreements 3(1)

Best Practices Manual A-49

Applicability to Contracts

Applicable to all contracts.

Flow Down

Not required by statute or regulation for either primary contractors or subcontractors, this concept should flow down to all levels to clarify, to all parties to the contract, that the Federal Government does not have contractual liability to third parties, absent specific written consent.

Model Clause/Language

While no specific language is required, FTA has developed the following language.

No Obligation by the Federal Government.

- 1. The parties acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying contract, absent the express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a party to this contract and shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Purchaser, Contractor, or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any matter resulting from the underlying contract.
- 2. The parties agree to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions.

49 U.S.C. 2 5323(I); 31 U.S.C. s 3801-3812; 18 U.S.C. s 1001; 49 C.F.R. 31; Best Practices Manual A-54; Master Agreements 4.c

Applicability to Contracts

These requirements are applicable to all contracts.

Flow Down

The Program Fraud clause extends to all third-party contractors and their contracts at every tier and subrecipients and their subcontracts at every tier. These requirements flow down to contractors and subcontractors who make, present, or submit covered claims and statements.

Model Clause/Language

These requirements have no specified language, so FTA proffers the following language.

Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts.

- 1. The Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. § § 3801 et seq. and U.S. DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 C.F.R. Part 31, apply to its actions pertaining to this Project. Upon execution of the underlying contract, the Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement it has made, it makes, it may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the underlying contract or the FTA assisted project for which this contract work is being performed. In addition to other penalties that may be applicable, the Contractor further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification, the Federal Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 on the Contractor to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.
- 2. The Contractor also acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the Federal Government under a contract connected with a project that is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance originally awarded by FTA under the authority of 49 U.S.C. § 5307, the Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5307(n)(1) on the Contractor, to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.
- 3. The Contractor agrees to include the above two clauses in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is further agreed that the clauses shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to the provisions.

Termination 2 C.F.R. § 200.339 and Appendix II (B); FTA 4220.1F - Best Practices Manual A-69

Applicability to Contracts

Recipients must include provisions in their contracts and subcontracts that allows for termination for cause and for convenience by the recipient, including the manner by which it will be affected and the basis for settlement.

Flow Down

The termination requirements flow down to all contracts in excess of \$10,000.

Model Clause/Language

FTA does not prescribe the form or content of such clauses. The following are suggestions of clauses to be used in different types of contracts:

- a. **Termination for Convenience (General Provision)** The (Recipient) may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to the Contractor when it is in the Government's best interest. The Contractor shall be paid its costs, including contract close-out costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of termination. The Contractor shall promptly submit its termination claim to (Recipient) to be paid the Contractor. If the Contractor has any property in its possession belonging to the (Recipient), the Contractor will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner the (Recipient) directs.
- b. **Termination for Default [Breach or Cause] (General Provision)** If the Contractor does not deliver supplies in accordance with the contract delivery schedule, or, if the contract is for services, the Contractor fails to perform in the manner called for in the contract, or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of the contract, the (Recipient) may terminate this contract for default. Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of termination on the contractor setting forth the manner in which the Contractor is in default. The contractor will only be paid the contract price for supplies delivered and accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in the contract.
 - If it is later determined by the (Recipient) that the Contractor had an excusable reason for not performing, such as a strike, fire, or flood, events which are not the fault of or are beyond the control of the Contractor, the (Recipient), after setting up a new delivery of performance schedule, may allow the Contractor to continue work, or treat the termination as a termination for convenience.
- c. **Opportunity to Cure (General Provision)** The (Recipient) in its sole discretion may, in the case of a termination for breach or default, allow the Contractor [an appropriately short period of time] in which to cure the defect. In such case, the notice of termination will state the time period in which cure is permitted and other appropriate conditions
 - If Contractor fails to remedy to (Recipient)'s satisfaction the breach or default of any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Contract within [ten (10) days] after receipt by Contractor of written notice from (Recipient) setting forth the nature of said breach or default, (Recipient) shall have the right to terminate the Contract without any further obligation to Contractor. Any such termination for default shall not in any way operate to preclude (Recipient) from also pursuing all available remedies against Contractor and its sureties for said breach or default.
- d. Waiver of Remedies for any Breach In the event that (Recipient) elects to waive its remedies for any breach by Contractor of any covenant, term or condition of this Contract, such waiver by (Recipient) shall not limit (Recipient)'s remedies for any succeeding breach of that or of any other term, covenant, or condition of this Contract.
- e. **Termination for Convenience (Professional or Transit Service Contracts)** The (Recipient), by written notice, may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, when it is in the Government's interest. If this contract is terminated, the Recipient shall be liable only for payment under the payment provisions of this contract for services rendered before the effective date of termination.
- f. **Termination for Default (Supplies and Service)** If the Contractor fails to deliver supplies or to perform the services within the time specified in this contract or any extension or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of this contract, the (Recipient) may terminate this contract for default. The (Recipient) shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of the default. The Contractor will only be paid the contract price for supplies delivered and accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner or performance set forth in this contract.

If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of the Recipient.

g. **Termination for Default (Transportation Services)** If the Contractor fails to pick up the commodities or to perform the services, including delivery services, within the time specified in this contract or any extension or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of this contract, the (Recipient) may terminate this contract for default. The (Recipient) shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of default. The Contractor will only be paid the contract price for services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in this contract.

If this contract is terminated while the Contractor has possession of Recipient goods, the Contractor shall, upon direction of the (Recipient), protect and preserve the goods until surrendered to the Recipient or its agent. The Contractor and (Recipient) shall agree on payment for the preservation and protection of goods. Failure to agree on an amount will be resolved under the Dispute clause.

If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of the (Recipient).

h. **Termination for Default (Construction)** If the Contractor refuses or fails to prosecute the work or any separable part, with the diligence that will ensure its completion within the time specified in this contract or any extension or fails to complete the work within this time, or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of this contract, the (Recipient) may terminate this contract for default. The (Recipient) shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of the default. In this event, the Recipient may take over the work and compete—it by contract or otherwise, and may take possession of and use any materials, appliances, and plant on the work site necessary for completing the work. The Contractor and its sureties shall be liable for any damage to the Recipient resulting from the Contractor's refusal or failure to complete the work within specified time, whether or not the Contractor's right to proceed with the work is terminated. This liability includes any increased costs incurred by the Recipient in completing the work.

The Contractor's right to proceed shall not be terminated nor the Contractor charged with damages under this clause if-

- 1. the delay in completing the work arises from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor. Examples of such causes include: acts of God, acts of the Recipient, acts of another Contractor in the performance of a contract with the Recipient, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes; and
- 2. the contractor, within [10] days from the beginning of any delay, notifies the (Recipient) in writing of the causes of delay. If in the judgment of the (Recipient), the delay is excusable, the time for completing the work shall be extended. The judgment of the (Recipient) shall be final and conclusive on the parties, but subject to appeal under the Disputes clauses.

If, after termination of the Contractor's right to proceed, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, or that the delay was excusable, the rights and obligations of the parties will be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of the Recipient.

i. Termination for Convenience or Default (Architect and Engineering) The (Recipient) may terminate this contract in whole or in part, for the Recipient's convenience or because of the failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract obligations. The (Recipient) shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature, extent, and effective date of the termination. Upon receipt of the notice, the Contractor shall (1) immediately discontinue all services affected (unless the notice directs otherwise), and (2) deliver to the Contracting Officer all data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information and materials accumulated in performing this contract, whether completed or in process.

If the termination is for the convenience of the Recipient, the Contracting Officer shall make an equitable adjustment in the contract price but shall allow no anticipated profit on unperformed services.

If the termination is for failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract obligations, the Recipient may complete the work by contact or otherwise and the Contractor shall be liable for any additional cost incurred by the Recipient.

If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of the Recipient.

j. **Termination for Convenience of Default (Cost-Type Contracts)** The (Recipient) may terminate this contract, or any portion of it, by serving a notice or termination on the Contractor. The notice shall state whether the termination is for convenience of the (Recipient) or for the default of the Contractor. If the termination is for default, the notice shall state the manner in which the contractor has failed to perform the requirements of the contract. The Contractor shall account for any property in its possession paid for from funds received from the (Recipient), or property supplied to the Contractor by the (Recipient). If the termination is for default, the (Recipient) may fix the fee, if the contract provides for a fee, to be paid the contractor in proportion to the value, if any, of work performed up to the time of termination. The Contractor shall promptly submit its termination claim to the (Recipient) and the parties shall negotiate the termination settlement to be paid the Contractor.

If the termination is for the convenience of the (Recipient), the Contractor shall be paid its contract close-out costs, and a fee, if the contract provided for payment of a fee, in proportion to the work performed up to the time of termination.

If, after serving a notice of termination for default, the (Recipient) determines that the Contractor has an excusable reason for not performing, such as strike, fire, flood, events which are not the fault of and are beyond the control of the contractor, the (Recipient), after setting up a new work schedule, may allow the Contractor to continue work, or treat the termination as a termination for convenience.

Government-Wide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement) 2 C.F.R. § 200.214; 2 C.F.R. § 180; 2 C.F.R. § 1200; E.O. 12549; E.O. 12689; Best Practices Manual A-45

Background and Applicability

The regulations in <u>2 CFR part 180</u> restrict awards, subawards, and contracts with certain parties that are debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal assistance programs or activities.

Applies to any contract, regardless of tier, that is awarded by a contractor, subcontractor, supplier, consultant, or its agent or representative in any transaction, if the contract is to be funded or provided by the Department of Transportation under a covered nonprocurement transaction and the amount of the contract is expected to equal or exceed \$25,000.

Flow Down

Recipients, contractors, and subcontractors (at any level) that enter into covered transactions are required to verify that the entity (as well as its principals and affiliates) with which they propose to contract or subcontract is not excluded or disqualified.

Model Clause/Language

The Contractor shall comply and facilitate compliance with U.S. DOT regulations, "Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment," 2 C.F.R. part 1200, which adopts and supplements the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (U.S. OMB) "Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement)," 2 C.F.R. part 180. These

provisions apply to each contract at any tier of \$25,000 or more, and to each contract at any tier for a federally required audit (irrespective of the contract amount), and to each contract at any tier that must be approved by an FTA official irrespective of the contract amount. As such, the Contractor shall verify that its principals, affiliates, and subcontractors are eligible to participate in this federally funded contract and are not presently declared by any Federal department or agency to be:

- a) Debarred from participation in any federally assisted Award;
- b) Suspended from participation in any federally assisted Award;
- c) Proposed for debarment from participation in any federally assisted Award;
- d) Declared ineligible to participate in any federally assisted Award;
- e) Voluntarily excluded from participation in any federally assisted Award; or
- f) Disqualified from participation in ay federally assisted Award.

By signing and submitting its bid or proposal, the bidder or proposer certifies as follows:

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact relied upon by the AGENCY. If it is later determined by the AGENCY that the bidder or proposer knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to remedies available to the AGENCY, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. part 180, subpart C, as supplemented by 2 C.F.R. part 1200, while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions.

Civil Rights Laws and Regulations 52 U.S.C 2000d; 49 C.F.R Part 21

Applicability to Contracts

The following Federal Civil Rights laws and regulations apply to all contracts.

Flow Down

The Civil Rights requirements flow down to all third party contractors and their contracts at every tier.

Model Clause/Language

The Contractor and any subcontractor agree to comply with all the requirements prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin of the Title VI of the Civil Rights Action of 1964, as amended 52 U.S.C. 2000d, and U.S. DOT regulation "Nondiscrimination in Federal-Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation - Effectuation of the Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, "49 C.F.R. Part 21 and any implementing requirement FTA may issue.

Federal Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Requirements
49 U.S.C. § 5332;
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964;
Best Practices Manual A-24

Applicability to Contracts

The EEO Requirements apply to all contracts.

Model Clause/Language

The following clause was predicated on language contained at 49 CFR Part 19, Appendix A, but FTA has shorten the lengthy text.

Federal Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Requirements.

The AGENCY is an Equal Opportunity Employer. As such, the AGENCY agrees to comply with all applicable Federal civil rights laws and implementing regulations. Apart from inconsistent requirements imposed by Federal laws or regulations, the AGENCY agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(h) (3) by not using any Federal assistance awarded by FTA to support procurements using exclusionary or discriminatory specifications.

- 1. Federal Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Requirements. This include, but are not limited to:
 - a. Nondiscrimination in Federal Public Transportation Programs. 49 U.S.C. §5332, covering projects, programs, and activities financed under 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53, prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex (including sexual orientation and gender identity), disability, or age, and prohibits discrimination in employment or business opportunity.
 - b. Prohibition against Employment Discrimination. Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," September 24, 1965, as amended, prohibit discrimination in employment on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- 2. Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age. The "Age Discrimination Act of 1975," as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 1601 et seq., and Department of Health and Human Services implementing regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance," 45 C.F.R. part 90, prohibit discrimination by participants in federally assisted programs against individuals on the basis of age. The Age Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA), 29 U.S.C. § 621 et seq., and Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) implementing regulations, "Age Discrimination in Employment Act," 29 C.F.R. part 1625, also prohibit employment discrimination against individuals age 40 and over on the basis of age.
- 3. Federal Protections for Individuals with Disabilities. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended (ADA), 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., prohibits discrimination against qualified individuals with disabilities in programs, activities, and services, and imposes specific requirements on public and private entities. Third party contractors must comply with their responsibilities under Title I, II, III, IV, and V of the ADA in employment, public services, public accommodations, telecommunications, and other provisions, many of which are subject to regulations issued by other Federal agencies.

Resolution of Disputes, Breaches, or Other Litigation 2 C.F.R. 200.326 and Appendix II (A); Best Practices Manual A-75

Applicability to Contracts

All contracts shall contain provisions or conditions which will allow for administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate. This may include provisions for bonding, penalties for late or inadequate performance, retained earnings, liquidated damages or other appropriate measures.

Flow Down

The Breaches and Dispute Resolutions requirements flow down to all tiers.

Model Clauses/Language

FTA does not prescribe the form or content of such provisions. What provisions are developed will depend on the circumstances and the type of contract. Recipients should consult legal counsel in developing appropriate clauses. The following clauses are examples of provisions from various FTA third party contracts.

Disputes - Disputes arising in the performance of this Contract which are not resolved by agreement of the parties shall be decided in writing by the authorized representative of (Recipient)'s [title of employee]. This decision shall be final and conclusive unless within [ten (10)] days from the date of receipt of its copy, the Contractor mails or otherwise furnishes a written appeal to the [title of employee]. In connection with any such appeal, the Contractor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and to offer evidence in support of its position. The decision of the [title of employee] shall be binding upon the Contractor and the Contractor shall abide be the decision.

Performance During Dispute - Unless otherwise directed by (Recipient), Contractor shall continue performance under this Contract while matters in dispute are being resolved.

Claims for Damages - Should either party to the Contract suffer injury or damage to person or property because of any act or omission of the party or of any of his employees, agents or others for whose acts he is legally liable, a claim for damages therefor shall be made in writing to such other party within a reasonable time after the first observance of such injury of damage.

Remedies - Unless this contract provides otherwise, all claims, counterclaims, disputes and other matters in question between the (Recipient) and the Contractor arising out of or relating to this agreement or its breach will be decided by arbitration if the parties mutually agree, or in a court of competent jurisdiction within the State in which the (Recipient) is located.

Rights and Remedies - The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. No action or failure to act by the (Recipient), (Architect) or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the Contract, nor shall any such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE's) 49 CFR Part 26

Background and Applicability

The rule provides guidance to grantees on the use of overall and contract goals, requirement to include DBE provisions in subcontracts, evaluating DBE participation where specific contract goals have been set, reporting requirements, and replacement of DBE subcontractors.

Additionally, the DBE program dictates payment terms and conditions (including limitations on retainage) applicable to all subcontractors regardless of whether they are DBE firms or not.

The DBE program applies to all DOT-assisted contracting activities. A formal clause such as that below must be included in all contracts above the micro-purchase level. The requirements of clause subsection b flow down to subcontracts.

A substantial change to the payment provisions in this newest version of Part 26 concerns retainage (see section 26.29). Grantee choices concerning retainage should be reflected in the language choices in clause subsection d.

Clause Language

The following clause language is suggested, not mandatory. It incorporates the payment terms and conditions applicable to all subcontractors based in Part 26 as well as those related only to DBE subcontractors. The suggested language allows for the options available to grantees concerning retainage, specific contract goals, and evaluation of DBE subcontracting participation when specific contract goals have been established.

Disadvantaged Business Enterprises

The successful bidder/offeror will be required to report its DBE participation obtained through race-neutral means throughout the period of performance.

- a. The contractor is required to pay its subcontractors performing work related to this contract for satisfactory performance of that work no later than 30 days after the contractor's receipt of payment for that work from TRAILBLAZER. In addition, the contractor may not hold retainage from its subcontractors.
- b. The contractor must promptly notify TRAILBLAZER, whenever a DBE subcontractor performing work related to this contract is terminated or fails to complete its work and must make good faith efforts to engage another DBE subcontractor to perform at least the same amount of work. The contractor may not terminate any DBE subcontractor and perform that work through its own forces or those of an affiliate without prior written consent of TRAILBLAZER.

Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms FTA Circular 4220.1F

Applicability to Contracts

The incorporation of FTA terms applies to all contracts.

Flow Down

The incorporation of FTA terms has unlimited flow down.

Model Clause/Language

FTA has developed the following incorporation of terms language:

Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms - The preceding provisions include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by DOT, whether or not expressly set forth in the preceding contract provisions. All contractual provisions required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220 are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this Agreement. The Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any requests which would cause a violation of the FTA terms and conditions.

Prompt Payment 49 CFR 26.29

Applicability to Contracts

Ensures that vendors performing work for satisfactory performance are paid no later than 30 days after work is provided.

Flow Down

Applies to subrecipient, contractors and sub-contractors at all tiers.

Model Clause/Language

The contractor is required to pay its subcontractors performing work related to this contract for satisfactory performance of that work not later than 30 days after the contractor's receipt of payment for that work. In addition, the contractor is required to return any retainage payments to those subcontractors within 30 days after the subcontractor's work related to this contract is satisfactorily completed.

The contractor must promptly notify the Agency, whenever a DBE subcontractor performing work related to this contract is terminated or fails to complete its work and must make good faith efforts to engage another DBE subcontractor to perform at least the same amount of work. The contractor may not terminate any DBE subcontractor and perform that work through its own forces or those of an affiliate without prior written consent by the Agency.

Prohibition on Certain Telecommunications Public Law 115-232 2 CFR part 200.216

Applicability to Contracts

Contractors are prohibited from using grant dollars to purchase technology from certain unfriendly foreign nations (Russia, China, Iran, Belarus), specifically Huawei.

Flow Down

Applies to subrecipient, contractors and sub-contractors at all tiers.

Clause Language:

- a) Recipients and subrecipients are prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to:
 - 1) procure or obtain;
 - 2) extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or
 - 3) enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system. As described in Public Law 115-232, section 889, covered telecommunications equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate or such entities).
 - i. For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance of critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporations, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahau Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).
 - ii. Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment.
 - iii. Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of the National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the government of a covered foreign country.
- b) In implementing the prohibition under Public Law 115-232, section 889, subsection (f), paragraph (1), heads of executive agencies administering loan, grant, or subsidy programs shall prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, institutions and organizations as is reasonably necessary for those affected

entities to transition from covered communications equipment and services, to procure replacement equipment and services, and the ensure that communications service to user and customers is sustained.

- c) See Public Law 115-232, section 889 for additional information.
- d) See also section 220.471.

Safe Operating of Motor Vehicles - Seat Belt Use and Distracted Driving M.A. Section 34 (a) and (b) E.O. 13043 and 130513

Applicability to Contracts

Requires that contractor's drivers wear seat belts and refrain from texting while driving and include a "Seat Belt Use" provision in each third-party agreement related to the Award with the Special Provision of Distracted Driving, including text messaging while driving, in each third-party sub agreement at each tier supported with federal assistance.

Flow Down

Applies to subrecipient, contractors and sub-contractors at all tiers.

Clause Language:

Seat Belt Use. The Recipient agrees to implement Executive Order No. 13043, "Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States," April 16, 1997, 23 U.S.C. § 402 note, (62 Fed. Reg. 19217), by: (1) Adopting and promoting on-the-job seat belt use policies and programs for its employees and other personnel that operate company-owned vehicles, company-rented vehicles, or personally operated vehicles; and 93 (2) Including a "Seat Belt Use" provision in each third party agreement related to the Award.

Distracted Driving, Including Text Messaging While Driving. The Recipient agrees to comply with: (1) Executive Order No. 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving," October 1, 2009, 23 U.S.C. § 402 note, (74 Fed. Reg. 51225); (2) U.S. DOT Order 3902.10, "Text Messaging While Driving," December 30, 2009; and (3) The following U.S. DOT Special Provision pertaining to Distracted Driving: (i) Safety. The Recipient agrees to adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers, including policies to ban text messaging while using an electronic device supplied by an employer, and driving a vehicle the driver owns or rents, a vehicle Recipient owns, leases, or rents, or a privately-owned vehicle when on official business in connection with the Award, or when performing any work for or on behalf of the Award; Recipient Size. The Recipient agrees to conduct workplace safety initiatives in a manner commensurate with its size, such as establishing new rules and programs to prohibit text messaging while driving, reevaluating the existing programs to prohibit text messaging while driving, and providing education, awareness, and other outreach to employees about the safety risks associated with texting while driving; and (iii) Extension of Provision. The Recipient agrees to include the preceding Special Provision of section 34(b)(3)(i) – (ii) of this Master Agreement in its third party agreements and encourage its Third Party Participants to comply with this Special Provision, and include this Special Provision in each third party sub agreement at each tier supported with federal assistance.

Federal Tax Liability and Recent Felony Convictions M.A. Section 4 (g)

Applicability to Contracts

Prior to entering into any Third-Party Agreement with any private corporation, partnership, trust, joint-stock company, sole proprietorship, or other business association, the Recipient will obtain from the prospective Third-Party Participant a certification attesting from third-party that they do not have outstanding federal tax liabilities and have not been convicted of a felony crime in the last 24 months.

Flow Down

The Recipient agrees to require the contractor to flow this requirement down to participants at all lower tiers, without regard to the value of any sub agreement.

Clause Language:

- (1) The contractor certifies that it:
- (a) Does not have any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability; and
- (b) Was not convicted of the felony criminal violation under any Federal law within the preceding 24 months.

Date

If the contractor cannot so certify, the Recipient will refer the matter to FTA and not enter into any Third-Party Agreement with the Third-Party Participant without FTA's written approval.

(2) Flow-Down. The Recipient agrees to require tiers, without regard to the value of any sub agr	e the contractor to flow this requirement down to participants at all lowe reement.
The Contractor,, co	ertifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each
statement of its certification and disclosure, if a that apply to this certification and disclosure, if	any. In addition, the Contractor understands and agrees that the provision any.
	Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official
	Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official

Attachment L — Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Special Provisions



Minnesota Department of Transportation Office of Civil Rights

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

Goods and Services

RACE/GENDER NEUTRAL GOAL

Project Information				
MnDOT Grant Agreement Number:	This contract uses the following project delivery method:			
This contract will be solicited and administered by: X A subrecipient of Federal FTA Funds (governments or non-profit agency)	 □ For the procurement of Goods □ For the procurement of Services □ For the procurement of Third-Party Operations/Services OR X For the procurement of Professional Services 			

Introduction

Federal Regulations Govern. Some or all of the funds for this contract will come from the U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT). Therefore, the federal Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) program described at Title 49,Part 26 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) applies to this contract. The responder is responsible for understanding and following the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26.

Purpose. These special provisions (1) outline the responder's obligations under the federal DBE program, (2) explain the process MnDOT Office of Civil Rights (OCR) will follow to evaluate the responder's compliance with DBE program requirements, and (3) identify sanctions for failing to comply with DBE program requirements. These provisions apply *in addition to* any other requirements applicable to award of this contract.

Policy Statement. MnDOT must ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of contracts funded in whole or in parts with federal funds. The DBE program seeks to:

- Create a level playing field on which DBEs can compete fairly for federally funded projects,
- Ensure that the DBE program is narrowly tailored,
- Ensure that only eligible firms are permitted to participate as DBEs,
- Help remove barriers to the participation of DBEs in federally funded projects, and
- Provide flexibility in establishing and providing opportunities for DBEs.

Contract Assurance. The USDOT requires MnDOT, as a recipient of federal funds, to include the following paragraph in contracts for federally funded projects. It applies to the responder, and the responder must also include it in subcontracts the responder executes for this project.

The contractor, sub recipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor tocarry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate, which may include, but is not limited to, (1) withholding monthly progress payments, (2) assessing sanctions, (3) liquidated damages, and/or (4) disqualifying the contractor from future bidding as non-responsible.

Application and Interpretation. Terms must be interpreted as follows:

- "Responder" refers to the bidder, apparent low bidder, proposer, or apparent successful proposer.
- "Proposal" includes a bid, proposal or price proposal.

RACE/GENDER NEUTRAL GOAL

If the DBE goal is Race/Gender Neutral (RGN), all responders are encouraged to include their anticipated DBE utilization for the contract in their proposals. Each responder will still be required to submit a bidders list (Part D) of all subcontractors and suppliers (both DBE and non-DBE) on projects with an RGN goal. While DBE participation is encouraged on proposals with an RGN goal, responders who are able to meet DBE participation are to complete and submit the Contractors Payment Form and DBE Total Payment Affidavit).

ADDITIONAL SUBCONTRACTORS, SUPPLIERS AND SERVICE PROVIDERS

Whenever an additional subcontractor, supplier or service provider is selected, and this information has not been previously reported to the MnDOT Office of Civil Rights, the Contractor or its designated OCR Officer shall promptly provide MnDOT OCR with the following information regarding the subcontract:

- a) The name of the subcontractor; supplier or service provider;
- b) The total dollar amount of the subcontract;
- c) The specific work items covered by the subcontract;
- d) Estimated quantities of each work item; and
- e) Individual unit prices (if applicable).

SUBMITTAL OF DOCUMENTATION

Upon award of the contract, the Contractor shall submit on the attached Bidders List, a complete list of all subcontractors, service providers, suppliers and consultants that submitted bids, and shall indicate the successful quotes that will be used on the contract.

Additionally, during the life of the contract, the Contractor shall submit progress payment reports on the attached Contractor Payment Form regarding the payments made to its subcontractors, suppliers, service providers and subconsultants. In accordance with federal regulations and Minnesota's Prompt Payment law, Contractors are required to pay their subcontractors within ten

(10) days of receiving progress payments from MnDOT. Contractors are also required to submitto the Project Engineer and the MnDOT OCR the Contractor Payment Forms no later than ten (10) days after receiving payment from MnDOT.

PROMPT PAYMENT

The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor under this prime contract within ten days of the prime contractor's receipt of payment from the state for undisputed services provided by the subcontractor. The prime contractor must pay interest of 1-1/2 percent per month or any part of a month to the subcontractor on any undisputed amount not paid on time to the subcontractor. The prime contractor agrees further to return retainage payments to each subcontractor within ten days after the subcontractor's work is satisfactorily completed. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors. Any contractor making payments to subcontractors must complete and submit the attached Contractor Payment form.

FINAL PAYMENT AFFIDAVIT

Pursuant to MnDOT Standard Specifications for Construction Sec. 1908, "Unless a Contractor has presented an Affidavit showing the total dollar amounts of works performed by disadvantagedbusiness enterprise (DBE), final payment may be withheld." The DBE Total Payment Affidavit shall be executed by the Prime Contractor after all work has been performed by DBE(s) on the project.

This Race/Gender Neutral Goal Language is an addendum to the MnDOT DBE Special Provisions.



PART D – BIDDERS LIST – NON-DBE and DBE QUOTES SUBMITTED							
Contractor:							
DBE COMMITMENTS List all DBE firms who provided quotes or bid proposals. Indicate whether the quotes were accepted. Please include a copy of their quote(s). DBE Contractor Information			DBE Goal Submitted? Description of Work	Dollar Amount of Bid/Proposal	Will Firm Be Used?		
1.	DBE Contractor Name					Yes	
	Contact Name.						
	Address					No	
	Federal Tax #	E-mail					
	Phone	Fax:					
2.	DBE Contractor Name					Yes	
	Contact Name						
	Address					No	
	Federal Tax #	E-mail					
	Phone	Fax					
	DBE Contractor Name					Yes	
	Contact Name						
3.	Address				No		
٥.	Federal Tax #	E-mail					
	Phone	Fax					
	DBE Contractor Name	•				Yes	
4.	Contact Name						
	Address:				No		
					INO		
	Federal Tax #	E-mail					
	Phone	Fax					



Title:

Phone:

Minnesota Department of Transportation Office of Civil Rights

From: ________To: ______ **Payment Reporting Period:** Instructions: All Contractors making payments to Contractors/Subco (OCR), each time payments are made to sub-contractors until final payment is made. Failure to comply with this form and Minnesota's prompt payment law may cause progress payments to be withheld. Submit one copy of this form to the MnDOT OCR and one copy to the Project Engineer, no later than ten (10) days after receiving payment from MnDOT. Some projects require that payment information be entered into AASHTOWare Project CRL. See Table C of the DBE Special Provisions for payment submission requirements Actual DBE % to Date **Contractor Information Original Contract Amount** Committed DBE % Name: Address: Phone: DBE? **Subcontract Amount** Name of Subcontractor/Supplier Description of Work (Check if Yes) 1. 1. \Box 3. 3. 3. П 4. 4. 4. П 5. \Box 6. 6. **Amount of Current Payment** % Paid to date **Total Sub-Contractor Payment-To-Date** Final Payment? Yes/No 1. 1. 2. 2. 2. 3. 3. 3. 3. 4. 4. 4. 4. 5. 5. Name & Title of Individual Completing Report Company Official's Signature & Title **Date Signed** (Type or Print Clearly)

Title:

Phone:

Fax:

Fax:



DBE Total Payment Affidavit

Pursuant to MnDOT Standard Specifications for Construction, Section 1516.3, the following DBE Total Payment Affidavit shall be executed by the Prime Contractor after all work contracted to be performed by DBEs has been satisfactorily completed. This Affidavit is required prior to MnDOT Office of Civil Rights issuing final clearance on the project. Identify each DBE firm that worked on the project and the dollar amount of the subcontract. If the dollar value of a DBE firm's total work is less than the DBE's original subcontract, please attach an explanation.

State Project Number:						
STATE OF MINNESOTA						
COUNTY OF						
I,, b	peing first duly sworn, state as follow	rs:				
(Full Name)	,					
1. I am the authorized representative of						
-	[am the authorized representative of					
and I have the authority to make this affida	vit for and on behalf of said Prime C	ontractor.				
2. The following DBE Subcontractors/Supp		ants have				
performed work on the above project with a	a total dollar value of:	1				
Name of DBE Firm	Dollar Amount of Subcontract	Total Dollar Amount Paid				
1.						
2.						
3.						
4.						
5.						
6.						
7.						
8.						
3. I have fully informed myself regarding the	he accuracy of the statements made in	n this Affidavit.				
Signadi						
Signed	Signed:(Prime Contractor or Authorized Representative)					
Subscribed and sworn to before me This day of, 20						
Tins, 20, 20						
(Notary Public)						
My commission expires, 2	20					
Prepare affidavit in duplicate. Submit one affidavit to MnDOT's Office of Civil Rights, 395 John or email completed form to: ocrformsubm	Ireland Blvd., MS 170, St. Paul, MN 55155	i				

No. 1516.3 — Standard Specifications for Construction

Unless the contractor has provided an Affidavit showing the total dollar amounts of work performed by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs), a final clearance letter will not be issued.